

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REPORT PREPARATION	5
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	5
2015-2016 SEASON	5
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	6
LIFE MEMBERS	9
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	10
SECRETARY'S REPORT	11
OBITUARIES	12
MICHAEL RADCLYFFE SMITH	12
COLIN JOHN BEZANT	13
ALAN CHARLES GUNN	14
ALAN STANLEY WOOLMER	15
STUART GEORGE DAULTRY	15
UMPIRE APPOINTMENTS	16
FIRST CLASS	16
BUPA SHEFFIELD SHIELD FINAL	16
BUPA SHEFFIELD SHIELD ROUNDS	16
LIST A	17
METADOR BBQ ONE DAY CUP FINALS SERIES	17
METADOR BBQ ONE DAY CUP ROUNDS	17
KFC BIG BASH #05	17
VB INTERNATIONAL SERIES	18
ICC UNDER 19'S WORLD CUP FINAL SERIES	18
ICC UNDER 19'S WORLD CUP ROUNDS	18
STATE REPRESENTATION	19
TOYOTA FUTURE'S LEAGUE ROUNDS	19
CRICKET AUSTRALIA UNDER 19 MALE NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS ROUNDS	19
CRICKET AUSTRALIA UNDER 17 MALE NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS FINALS SERIES	19
CRICKET AUSTRALIA UNDER 17 MALE NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS ROUNDS	19
CRICKET AUSTRALIA UNDER 18 FEMALE NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS ROUNDS	20
CRICKET AUSTRALIA UNDER 15 MALE NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIPS ROUNDS	20
CRICKET AUSTRALIA WNCL	21
REBEL WBBL #01	21
TOUR MATCHES	22

KFC BIG BASH #05 4 TH UMPIRES	22
LOCAL CRICKET	23
WADCC ALCOHOL THINK AGAIN JUNIOR GRADE FINALS	23
INVERACITY SHIELD U13	23
MCKENZIE SHIELD U14	23
WATKINS SHIELD U15	23
WADCC SHIELD U17	23
WAFCC ALCOHOL THINK AGAIN FINALS	24
T20 A GRADE	24
T20 B GRADE	24
50 OVER A GRADE	24
40 OVER A GRADE	24
WADCC ALCOHOL THINK AGAIN SENIOR GRADE FINALS	24
ONE DAY LEAGUE	24
COLTS	24
STATE-WIDE T20	25
PREMIER GRADE CRICKET	25
ASSOCIATION RECORDS	27
TEST MATCH REPRESENTATIVES	27
ONE DAY INTERNATIONAL REPRESENTATIVES	27
T20 INTERNATIONAL	27
FIRST CLASS REPRESENTATIVES	28
LIST A LIMITED OVER MATCHES	28
LIST A T20 MATCHES	28
SENIOR GRADE CRICKET (TOP 100)	29
JUNIOR GRADE CRICKET (TOP 15)	31
FEMALE GRADE CRICKET (TOP 15)	32
FIRST GRADE MATCHES (TOP 30)	32
SECOND GRADE MATCHES (TOP 30)	33
THIRD GRADE MATCHES (TOP 30)	33
FOURTH GRADE MATCHES (TOP 30)	33
COLTS MATCHES (TOP 30)	34
ONE DAY LEAGUE MATCHES (TOP 30)	34
T20 MATCHES (TOP 30)	34
2015-2016 SEASON RECORDS	35
SENIOR GRADE CRICKET	35

JUNIOR GRADE CRICKET	37
FEMALE GRADE CRICKET	38
2015-2016 UMPIRE MILESTONES	40
SENIOR GRADE CRICKET	40
JUNIOR GRADE CRICKET	41
2015-2016 UMPIRE DEBUT'S	41
SENIOR GRADE CRICKET	41
JUNIOR GRADE CRICKET	41
FEMALE GRADE CRICKET	41
2015-2016 UMPIRE MEDAL'S	42
OLLY COOLEY MEDAL NIGHT	42
FINANCIAL REPORT	43
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	43
ITEMISED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT	44
NOTES	45
ACKNOW! EDCMENTS	16



REPORT PREPARATION

This report has been prepared for presentation to Members at the 107th Annual General Meeting of the Western Australian Cricket Umpires' Association (Inc), held at the WACA Ground, Nelson Cres, East Perth Western Australia, 6004 on Tuesday 26th July 2016.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2015-2016 Season

PATRON: P. J. McCONNELL

PRESIDENT John Sherry
VICE PRESIDENT Matthew Hall
TREASURER Robert Watson
SECRETARY Ashlee Kovalevs
MINUTE SECRETARY Alan Wilson

MEMBERSHIP REGISTRAR Andrew Micenko

COMMITTEE MEMBERS Todd Rann

Nathan Batskos Trent Steenholdt Nathan Johnstone

UMPIRE'S ADVOCATE Stephen Farrell



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Season	President	Secretary	Treasurer
1908-09	J. C. Brickhill	E. Gray	E. Gray
1910-23			
1923-24	E. Walker	W. G. Pearce	W. G. Pearce
1924-25	A. D. McIntyre	E. Dobson	E. Dobson
1925-26	A. D. McIntyre	E. Dobson	E. Dobson
1926-27	A. D. McIntyre	E. Dobson	E. Dobson
1927-28	A. D. McIntyre	J. Purcell	J. Purcell
1928-29	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1929-30	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1930-31	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1931-32	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1932-33	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1933-34	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1934-35	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1935-36	A. D. McIntyre	A. B. Sparks	A. B. Sparks
1936-37	A. D. McIntyre	A. E. J. Roby	A. E. J. Roby
1937-38	A. D. McIntyre	A. E. J. Roby	A. E. J. Roby
1938-39	A. D. McIntyre	A. E. J. Roby	A. E. J. Roby
1939-40	A. D. McIntyre		
1940-41	A. D. McIntyre		
1941-42	A. D. McIntyre		
1942-43	A. D. McIntyre		
1943-44	A. D. McIntyre		
1944-45	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1945-46	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1946-47	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1947-48	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1948-49	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1949-50	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1950-51	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1951-52	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1952-53	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1953-54	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1954-55	A. D. McIntyre	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1955-56	C. W. Green	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1956-57	C. W. Green	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1957-58	C. W. Green	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1958-59	C. W. Green	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins



1959-60	C. W. Green	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1960-61	C. W. Green	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1961-62	J. A. Gillott	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1962-63	J. A. Gillott	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1963-64	J. A. Gillott	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1964-65	J. A. Gillott	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1965-66	J. A. Gillott	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1966-67	W. I. Carter	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1967-68	W. I. Carter	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1968-69	W. I. Carter	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1969-70	R. A. Johnson	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1970-71	R. A. Johnson	J. P. Robbins	J. P. Robbins
1971-72	R. A. Johnson	W. M. Powell	W. M. Powell
1972-73	R. A. Johnson	W. M. Powell	W. M. Powell
1973-74	R. A. Johnson	W. M. Powell	W. M. Powell
1974-75	R. A. Johnson	W. M. Powell	W. M. Powell
1974-75	R. A. Johnson	W. M. Powell	W. M. Powell
1975-76	J. D. Raynes	W. M. Powell	W. M. Powell
1976-77	W. M. Powell	P. J. McConnell	R. Rogers
1977-78	W. M. Powell	P. J. McConnell	W. F. de Mamiel
1978-79	W. M. Powell	P. J. McConnell	W. F. de Mamiel
1979-80	P. J. McConnell	R. H. Wenlock	W. F. de Mamiel
1980-81	P. J. McConnell	R. H. Wenlock	W. F. de Mamiel
1981-82	R. F. Anthony	R. H. Wenlock	W. F. de Mamiel
1982-83	R. F. Anthony	D. Y. Wade	W. F. de Mamiel
1983-84	P. J. McConnell	R. H. Wenlock	W. F. de Mamiel
1984-85	C. F. Gannon	W. M. Powell	W. F. de Mamiel
1985-86	C. F. Gannon	W. M. Powell	W. F. de Mamiel
1986-87	T. A. Prue	C. J. Mais	W. F. de Mamiel
1987-88	T. A. Prue	C. J. Mais	W. F. de Mamiel
1988-89	C. J. Mais	T. C. Drinkwater	W. F. de Mamiel
1989-90	C. J. Mais	T. C. Drinkwater	D. M. Hardiman
1990-91	A. E. Richings	N. F. Spitz	D. M. Hardiman
1991-92	A. E. Richings	N. F. Spitz	J. S. Taylor
1992-93	A. E. Richings	N. F. Spitz	J. S. Taylor
1993-94	T. Polich	C. J. Mais	J. S. Taylor
1994-95	T. Polich	K. R. Rinaldi	P. W. Reeves
1995-96	G. J. Bibby	K. R. Rinaldi	P. W. Reeves
1996-97	G. J. Bibby	R. Boyd	P. W. Reeves
1997-98	G. J. Bibby	R. Boyd	R. J. Woolridge



1998-99	D. C. Frame	R. Boyd	R. J. Woolridge
1999-00	D. C. Frame	S. T. Bellenger	R. J. Woolridge
2000-01	V. M. Stevens	S. T. Horrocks	R. J. Woolridge
2001-02	B. Callender	A. Barrett	G.C. Capper
2002-03	M. Press	A. Barrett	R. F. I. Watson
2003-04	M. Press	D. M. Johnston	R. F. I. Watson
2004-05	M. Press	D.M. Johnston	R. F. I. Watson
2005-06	M. Press	N. Christoffelsz	R. F. I. Watson
2006-07	J. Braby	N. Christoffelsz	D. Trigg
2007-08	J. Braby	S. Farrell	N. Christoffelsz
2008-09	S. Farrell	M. P. Hall	T. L. Steenholdt
2009-10	S. Farrell	N. Johnstone	A. Smith
2010-11	S. Farrell	N. Johnstone	A. D'Cunha
2011-12	S. Farrell	J. Sherry	R. F. I. Watson
2012-13	M. P. Hall	J. Sherry	R. F. I. Watson
2013-14	M. P. Hall	A. Kovalevs	R. F. I. Watson
2014-15	M. P. Hall	A. Kovalevs	R. F. I. Watson
2015-16	J. Sherry	A. Kovalevs	R. F. I. Watson



WACUA Member Andrew Micenko



LIFE MEMBERS

1924	T. H. Shiells*	1971	W. I. Carter*
1924	S. Bickford*	1972	S. J. McDonald*
1937	A. E. Pady*	1973	N. E. Townsend*
1938	A. B. Sparks*	1974	J. H. Blyth*
1939	A. D. McIntyre*	1977	W. J. Turner*
1940	T. Swain*	1979	W. M. Powell
1948	C. W. Green*	1980	E. J. D'Arcy-Evans
1951	J. P. Robbins*	1982	G. M. Jelly*
1952	J. W. Drew*	1983	D. L. Hawks*
1953	E. Tonkinson*	1984	D. G. Weser
1954	E. Roberts*	1988	P. J. McConnell
1955	A. F. Lethbridge*	1989	W. F. de Mamiel
1955	T. J. Arthur*	1991	A. E. Richings*
1956	I. F. Outtrim	1993	R. J. Evans
1956	A. K. Turner*	1994	T. A. Prue
1957	S. G. Walsh*	1995	R. H. Wenlock*
1958	M. F. Foley*	1997	C. F. Gannon
1961	O. T. C. Cooley*	2001	D. C. Frame*
1962	A. E. Mackley*	2003	W.P. Reynolds
1963	J. Elliott*	2009	T. Polich
1964	J. A. Gillott*	2009	R. F. L. Watson
1964	G. W. Bourne*	2009	G. J. Bibby
1967	R. A. Johnson*	2015	T. R. Rann

^{*} indicates deceased.



PRESIDENT'S REPORT

We have come to the end of another successful season. I would like to thank everyone, especially the WACUA committee for their support and commitment to umpiring in Western Australia.

I would like to think we have built on the progress made under previous President Matthew Hall in giving the association a clear direction in what its role is.

In particular, we have now developed a close relationship with the WACA competitions department and it is pleasing to see that training in co-operation with the WACA is now an integral role of the organisation.

Our numbers have increased from the previous year and it is important we put in place strategies to not only attract but retain our members. Membership of the WACUA should be regarded as essential to those



who umpire in grade cricket and it is important we continue to stress the benefits and importance of what membership entails.

We had several successful meetings this year. In particular, the meeting where the Test match umpires: Nigel Llong and Ravi Sunderam attended; was particularly enjoyable. It just emphasised to me that no matter what level you officiate at; we are all Umpires together.

I would like to thank Mick Martell for his continual support of the organisation and Matthew Hall, Umpire Manager and Committee member for his continual support. His passion for the sport and umpiring in particular shone through throughout what must have been a testing time.

Cricket is changing and as an organisation we have to move with the times. I expect to see a much closer relationship with the WACA emerging, which can only be a good thing. It is clear to me that the WACA values the role the WACUA plays in umpiring and I look forward to us playing an important role in maintaining and improving the high standard we expect from our umpires.

Finally, I would like to thank all the members of the WACUA who continue to make this a vibrant and enjoyable organisation and I hope, like me, you are looking forward to a new Season.

John Sherry PRESIDENT



SECRETARY'S REPORT

Thank you for your support throughout the 2015-16 season.

Once again we had a strong membership base which was reflected in the turnout at general meetings and other functions held throughout the course of the cricket year. Some events held by the WACUA this past season include the Life Members' Breakfast, the Grand Final day breakfast and the T20 Final BBQ. These occasions were well attended and enjoyed by all. It was great to see members and their families get involved throughout the season. Hopefully more family and support people will become active in the WACUA community in the future.

Wishing you all the best for the season ahead.

Ashlee Kovalevs SECRETARY





OBITUARIES

The Association wishes to pay tribute to Mrs. Gwen Lankester who passed away recently. She, and husband, Gordon, were regular attendees to our medal count night. She was there to present the JP Robbins Medal on behalf of her father, the renowned district umpire and administrator, JP Robbins.

Michael Radclyffe Smith

13/06/1927 - 12/01/2016

Michael Smith was born and educated in England. He saw army service at the latter end of World War II. In his youth he was a keen hockey player but was always fascinated with cricket. In 1956 he, his wife Julie, and four children migrated to Australia seeking better prospects.

A painter and decorator by profession he was never short of work during the WA housing boom. He generally worked alone, never long hours and maintained a better finish was obtained with traditional methods of the brush. Another three children were born in Western Australia.

After a couple of seasons umpiring in the Perth Mercantile Association he decided to transfer to WACA district competition. In the spring of 1980 he took the course of instruction and began a long association with that competition that year. He preferred to assist the younger player so concentrated his efforts on the lower grades.

For the next 22 seasons he stood in matches in that competition. His quiet demeanour was recognised by his peers and the board accepted his desire to stay at that level despite his good record. At the completion of the 2001-02 season he retired. Records showed he umpired 312 matches, mostly in the second and third grades. There were numerous other unofficial matches which were not recorded such as Darlot Cup and junior and senior Country Week.

Despite his English heritage his other unusual sporting participation was for the family to be the preparers of, and the banner holders at home matches for the Swan Districts Football Club.

Michael's wife pre-deceased him by some years, but all seven children - Dennis, Michael, Robert, David, Pam, Pauline and Kathie - remain in WA. Strangely his sons did not follow in his trade – they hated painting.



Colin John Bezant

20/04/1944 - 14/03/2016

A large family of ten Bezant children came to Perth from Albany with their parents when the youngest, Colin, was only 10. He was educated at North Inglewood and then John Forrest High School. His favourite subject was sport, especially football and cricket. On leaving school he had various junior positions and played football in the famed metropolitans junior competition.

He was residentially bound to North Perth for cricket but played with his mates until joining the district club in the mid-1960s. In only his second match he took a sensational 7/48 which suggested better things to come. However, a change in vocation meant he was unable to train regularly so could not continue playing there at first grade level.

Due to his work commitments, he was a travelling supplier, mid-week he could have been in the country. He began umpiring junior cricket and football on weekends. He was tempted to join the WACA competition in 1973 and so began a 17 season career in district cricket. After a couple of season of "apprenticeship" he graduated to first grade ranks. From the 294 matches in which he stood 167 were in firsts, and another 60 in Sunday league.

His happy-go-lucky attitude and cheery ability to get on with the players plus his good decision-making saw him elevated to first class level in 1982-83 when he umpired the visiting England team. The following season he stood in three Sheffield Shield matches.

Some changes to the Australian cricket structure saw other umpires preferred. Then some personal problems occurred in his private life so he concentrated on district cricket before retiring in 1989-90.

Commonly known as "Buzz", he liked a joke and a drink. In later life he had some health issues but still managed to play to play bowls. He left a daughter, Leona, who lives in America.



Alan Charles Gunn

16/09/1938 - 14/05/2016

Born and raised in South Perth, Alan was educated at Kalgoorlie and Narrogin Agricultural College. He played junior cricket in South Perth but on leaving school entered the hardware transport industry. This meant regular weekend work so could not join a cricket team on a continual basis.

He then joined the Air Force and was transferred to Melbourne. It was here that he commenced umpiring cricket, albeit in a sub-district competition. On returning to Perth in the mid-1970s he wished to continue in that field.

In 1978 he joined the WACA district competition and it was not long before it was realised he had good cricket knowledge and ability. His quiet demeanour and good decision making was well accepted by the players. Unfortunately work commitments put an end to that after the 1984-85 season. He had stood in 129 matches of which 62 were in first grade and 32 Sunday League fixtures.

On his retirement he offered his services to the Darlot Cup competition. He also umpired some midweek, Country Week and women's matches. Former friend, Bill Wood, also persuaded him stand in another sub-district competition when he was available. This stand-in became semi-permanent until failing health over the last three years curtailed that activity.

He leaves his wife, Janet, and three daughters.



Alan Stanley Woolmer

28/10/1940 - 05/06/2016

The Woolmer family migrated from England in 1949 seeking better opportunities. Alan was educated at North Perth and Perth Boy's. He played most sports that included cricket but for enjoyment rather than higher ambitions. On leaving school he joined the banking industry. Part of his training was in Melbourne so he spent some time there.

Alan's father, Ralph, had been a cricket umpire in the club competitions in the UK and he joined the WACUA in 1962. To make it a family affair Alan followed suit beginning with juniors and graduated to senior level in 1963. After only a few matches in the lower grades he received a country posting that prevented further involvement. While in the country he began playing once more and took part in the 1965 Country Week carnival.

Soon after returning to Perth he left the bank to pursue a private business venture in the retail trade. Weekend sport was difficult to arrange. He still maintained an interest and joined the WACA to watch first-class matches.

He left the retail business and studied accountancy. On qualifying he worked for various employers. He took a great interest in his daughter's sporting development. They were keen on little athletics. As a senior official he managed the WA team to an eastern states carnival.

He leaves his wife, Val, and three daughters.

Stuart George Daultry

1947 - 26/05/2015 (aged 68)

In the summer of 1998-99 a geography lecturer from Ireland visited Perth on his summer holidays. Stu Daultry was also a leading cricket umpire in Ireland and stood in the Australia A versus Ireland match earlier in 1998.

He made himself known to the WACUA "liaison officer" Albert Richings who arranged for him to get some umpiring experience during his stay. He stood in many mid-week matches, junior and senior Country Week and even several lower grade district matches.

All of this was under some difficulty as a severe motor cycle accident had reduced the feeling of one arm. This later affected his health and he had to stand down from active service. He continued to write thought provoking article for cricket websites.



UMPIRE APPOINTMENTS

First Class

BUPA Sheffield Shield Final

26-Mar-16 to 30-M	ar-16	Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire TV
South Australia	Victoria	MD Martell	P Wilson	JD Ward

BUPA Sheffield Shield Rounds

28-Oct-15 to 31-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
South Australia	New South Wales	MD Martell	G Davidson

06-Nov-15 to 09-Nov-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Tasmania	Queensland	P Gillespie	MD Martell

05-Mar-16 to 08-Mar-16	j	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Western Australia	South Australia	GC Joshua	MD Martell

15-Mar-16 to 18-Mar-16	5	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Victoria	New South Wales	MD Martell	P Wilson



List A

Metador BBQ One Day Cup Finals Series		
23-Oct-15, Elimination Final	Umpire 1	Umpire 2

23-Oct-15, Elimination Final		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Victoria	South Australia	JD Ward	MD Martell

25-Oct-15, Final		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
New South Wales	South Australia	MD Martell	JD Ward

Metador BBQ One Day Cup Rounds

11-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
South Australia	Queensland	MD Martell	JD Ward

14-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
South Australia	Tasmania	MD Martell	GC Joshua

16-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Victoria	South Australia	MD Martell	JD Ward

17-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Tasmania	Western Australia	JD Ward	MD Martell

18-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Western Australia	Queensland	MD Martell	GC Joshua

KFC Big Bash #05

18-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire TV
Adelaide Strikers	Melbourne Stars	M Graham-Smith	GA Abood	MD Martell

21-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire TV
Perth Scorchers	Adelaide Strikers	GA Abood	MD Martell	GC Joshua

3:	1-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire TV
A	delaide Strikers	Sydney Sixers	SD Fry	P Wilson	MD Martell

09-Jan-16		Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire TV
Melbourne Renegades	Melbourne Stars	GC Joshua	MD Martell	SAJ Craig



\/D	ntorr	nation	าวไ	$\varsigma \circ$	rinc

76 iliterriational se	1162					
12-Jan-16		Umpire 1	1	Umpire 2	ι	Jmpire TV
Australia	India	R Kettlek	orough	SD Fry	N	/ID Martell
15-Jan-16		Umpire 1	L	Umpire 2	L	Jmpire TV
Australia	India	R Kettlek	orough	MD Martell	S	D Fry
17-Jan-16		Umpire 2	<u> </u>	Umpire 2	l	Jmpire TV
Australia	India	SD Fry		R Kettleborou	gh N	/ID Martell
CC Under 19's Wo	rld Cup Final Ser	ries				
06-Feb-16, Quarter	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Umpire 1	L	Umpire 2	l	Jmpire TV
India	Namibia	Raza		MD Martell	В	raithwaite
09-Feb-16, Semi Fir	nal	Umpire 1	L	Umpire 2	l	Jmpire TV
India	Sri Lanka	Braithwa	ite	MD Martell	H	loldstock
14-Feb-16, Final		Umpire 1	L	Umpire 2	ι	Jmpire TV
India	West Indies	Bailey		Palliyaguruge	N	/ID Martell
CC Under 19's Wo	rld Cun Rounds					
27-Jan-16	Tra Cap Roarras		Umpire	1	Umpir	e 2
England	Fiji		Raza		MDM	
29-Jan-16			Umpire	1	Umpir	re 2
Fiji	Zimbabwe		MD Mar	rtell	Robins	son
-						
31-Jan-16			Umpire	1	Umpir	re 2
England	Zimbabwe		MD Mar		-	shuddin



STATE REPRESENTATION

Toyota Future's League Rounds

09-Nov-15 to 12-Nov-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
New South Wales	Western Australia	JH Hewitt	D Koch

23-Nov-15 to 26-Nov-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Western Australia	Queensland	TR Rann	TL Steenholdt

Cricket Australia Under 19 Male National Championships Rounds

Date	Teams		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
30-Nov-15	VIC	ACT/NSW	NR Johnstone	M Branch
30-Nov-15	NT	SA	JH Hewitt	D Shepard
01-Dec-15	Vic Met	VIC	JH Hewitt	D Taylor
01-Dec-15	QLD	WA	NR Johnstone	S Brne
03-Dec-15	ACT/NSW	NSW Met	JH Hewitt	NR Johnstone
04-Dec-15	WA	CA XI	D Koch	JH Hewitt
04-Dec-15	TAS	VIC	NR Johnstone	D Ireland
06-Dec-15	Vic Met	WA	NR Johnstone	D Shepard
06-Dec-15	TAS	QLD	JR Hewitt	S Brne
07-Dec-15	CA XI	VIC	NR Johnstone	D Taylor
07-Dec-15	Vic Met	SA	JH Hewitt	A Hobson
09-Dec-15	QLD	NT	M Branch	JH Hewitt
09-Dec-16	TAS	QLD	JH Hewitt	S Brne
10-Dec-16	QLD	CA XI	NR Johnstone	M Branch
10-Dec-16	WA	TAS	JH Hewitt	D Ireland

Cricket Australia Under 17 Male National Championships Finals Series

07-Oct-15, Semi Final		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
QLD	CA XI	TL Steenholdt	D Close

8-Oct-15, Final		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
NSW Met	QLD	TL Steenholdt	D Brigham

Cricket Australia Under 17 Male National Championships Rounds

Date	Teams	•	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
28-Sep-15	NSW Met	CA XI	B Farrell	TL Steenholdt
28-Sep-15	Vic Met	QLD	HJS Botes	H Wolff
29-Sep-15	CA XI	VIC	TL Steenholdt	D Brigham
29-Sep-15	NSW Met	SA	K Knight	HJS Botes
01-Oct-15	SA	TAS	TL Steenholdt	H Wolff



01-Oct-15	NT	VIC	HJS Botes	B Farrell
02-Oct-15	WA	CA XI	HJS Botes	D Brigham
02-Oct-15	ACT/NSW	QLD	A Crozier	TL Steenholdt
04-Oct-15	SA	ACT/NSW	HJS Botes	C Black
04-Oct-15	NT	WA	TL Steenholdt	K Knight
05-Oct-15	QLD	ACT/NSW	TL Steenholdt	D Close
05-Oct-15	SA	CA XI	HJS Botes	M Nickl
07-Oct-15	SA	ACT/NSW	HJS Botes	C Black
08-Oct-15	WA	NT	HJS Botes	A Crozier

Cricket Australia Under 18 Female National Championships Rounds

Date	Teams		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
09-Jan-16	NSW Met	CA XI	AN Kovalevs	D Venter
09-Jan-16	Vic Met	QLD	AN Kovalevs	M Marshall
15-Jan-16	CA XI	VIC	C Polosak	AN Kovalevs
15-Jan-16	NSW Met	SA	AN Kovalevs	K Cotton
17-Jan-16	SA	TAS	L Edwards	AN Kovalevs
17-Jan-16	NT	VIC	D Young	AN Kovalevs
18-Jan-16	WA	CA XI	AN Kovalevs	J Shephard
19-Jan-16	ACT/NSW	QLD	AN Kovalevs	J Shephard

Cricket Australia Under 15 Male National Championships Rounds

Date	Teams		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
21-Feb-16	VIC	ACT	JW Taylor	M Williamson
21-Feb-16	QLD	NSW Magenta	N Ferns	M Hooper
22-Feb-16	Vic Met	TAS	B du Plessis	JW Taylor
22-Feb-16	NSW Green	SA	M Hooper	T Penman
23-Feb-16	NSW Green	NT	JW Taylor	J Ruddick-Collins
23-Feb-16	Vic Met	VIC	S Farrell	M Hooper
25-Feb-16	NT	NSW Magenta	G Beechey	M Hooper
25-Feb-16	QLD	WA	JW Taylor	T Penman
26-Feb-16	VIC	ACT	G Beechy	JW Taylor
26-Feb-16	NT	TAS	M Hooper	M Williamson
28-Feb-16	VIC	NSW Magenta	M Hooper	JW Taylor



09-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WA Fury	NSW Breakers	JH Hewitt	NR Johnstone
10-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
SA Scorpions	NSW Breakers	JH Hewitt	TR Rann
11-Oct-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WA Fury	SA Scorpions	NR Johnstone	TR Rann
ebel WBBL #01			
11-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Scorchers	Heat	W Barron	HJS Botes
12-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Heat	6'ers	W Barron	TL Steenholdt
12-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Scorchers	6'ers	JH Hewitt	TR Rann
		'	
13-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Heat	Scorchers	TR Rann	JW Taylor
13-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
6'ers	Heat	HJS Botes	NR Johnstone
26-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Scorchers	Stars	TR Rann	TL Steenholdt
27-Dec-15		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Scorchers	Thunder	NR Johnstone	D Krieg
		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
27-Dec-15			
27-Dec-15 Scorchers	Stars	JH Hewitt	HJS Botes
	Stars	JH Hewitt	HJS Botes
	Stars	JH Hewitt Umpire 1	HJS Botes Umpire 2



Tour Matches

11-Dec-15, Exhibition T20 – Aquinas College		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
Scorchers	Legends XI	TL Steenholdt	DC Trigg

08-Jan-16, T20 – WACA Ground		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WA XI	India	JH Hewitt	D Koch

09-Jan-16, One Day (50 over) – WACA Ground		Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WA XI	India	NR Johnstone	D Koch

KFC Big Bash #05 4th Umpires

Date	Umpire 4
21-Dec-15, 16-Jan-16	JH Hewitt
26-Dec-16	NR Johnstone
02-Jan-16	TL Steenholdt



LOCAL CRICKET

WADCC Alcohol Think Again Junior Grade Finals

Inveracity Shield U13

6-Mar-16, I	inal	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WI	BM	Murdoch 2	Chaapa Pelpola	Colin McArthur

McKenzie Shield U14

6-Mar-16, I	Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WI	SC	Murdoch 1	Andrew Jones	Matthew Elwell

Watkins Shield U15

12-Mar-16,	Elim. Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	FR	Hillcrest Lower	Andrew Jones	George Christides
RM	MG	Stevens East	Trevor Krink	Colin McArthur
WA	SC	Kingsway 2	Brenton Cockman	Thomas Johnston

19-Mar-16,	Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	WA	Abbett Park East	Colin McArthur	Garth McCrorie
RM	FR	Lark Hill 2	Matthew Elwell	Trevor Krink

26-Mar-16	, Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
RO	WA	Murdoch 2	David Campbell	Trevor Krink

WADCC Shield U17

12-Mar-16,	Elim. Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	FR	Iluka 2	Darryl Power	Jarryd Buscall
WA	MG	Kingsway 1	Steve Rose	David Campbell
RM	PE	Lark Hill 2	Matthew Elwell	Garth McCrorie

19-Mar-16,	Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	PE	Iluka 2	Andrew Jones	Jarryd Buscall
WA	RM	Kingsway 1	Darryl Power	David Campbell

26-Mar-16	, Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	WA	Murdoch 1	Darryl Power	Jarryd Buscall



WAFCC Alcohol Think Again Finals

T20 A Grade

7-Feb-16, F	inal	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
MG	ME	WACA Ground	John Taylor	Ashlee Kovalevs

T20 B Grade

13-Dec-15,	Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
UN	MG	James	Bob Belcher	John Gartner

50 Over A Grade

20-Mar-16,	Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
MG	ME	WACA Ground	Fred Davis	Ashlee Kovalevs

40 Over A Grade

20-Mar-16,	Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
MG	SP	Lilac Hill 2	Fred Davis	Ashlee Kovalevs

WADCC Alcohol Think Again Senior Grade Finals

One Day League

14-Feb-16,	Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
RM	SF	Lark Hill	Nathan Johnstone	James Hewitt
CN	PE	Cresswell	Jeff Brookes	Todd Rann

6-Mar-16, F	inal	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
RM	CN	Fletcher East	Jeff Brookes	Nathan Johnstone

Colts

21-Feb-16,	Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
MG	SC	Lilac Hill 1	Neil Holland	Daniel Gibbons
C XI	ME	Harvey Rec	Trent Steenholdt	Andrew Micenko

28-Feb-16,	Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
MG	ME	Breckler 1	Trent Steenholdt	Neil Holland



State-wide T20

24-Jan-16,	Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
CN	ME	Cresswell	Nathan Johnstone	Wayne Barron
JO	Peel	Iluka 1	Todd Rann	James Hewitt

7-Feb-16, F	inal	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
CN	JO	WACA Ground	Nathan Johnstone	Todd Rann

Premier Grade Cricket

Grade 1

12/13-Mar-	-16, Elim. Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
RM	FR	Lark Hill 1	James Hewitt	Hennie Botes
WI	CN	Burrendah 1	Nathan Johnstone	Trent Steenholdt
PE	JO	Fletcher East	Jeff Brookes	Todd Rann

19/20-Mar	-16, Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
RM	PE	Lark Hill 1	Jeff Brookes	James Hewitt
WI	FR	Burrendah 1	Nathan Johnstone	Todd Rann

26/27-M	ar-16, Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire 3
JO	WA	WACA	Jeff Brookes	Nathan Johnstone	Dean Trigg
		Ground			

Grade 2

12/13-Mar-	-16, Elim. Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WI	CN	Burrendah 2	Neil Holland	John Sherry
PE	JO	Fletcher West	John Taylor	Dean Trigg
SC	ME	Abbett East	Jamal Principe	Mark Hooper

19/20-Mar-	-16, Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
WI	ME	Burrendah 2	Trent Steenholdt	John Taylor
PE	SC	Fletcher Park East	Hennie Botes	Neil Holland

26/27-M	ar-16, Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire 3
WI	PE	Cresswell	James Hewitt	Todd Rann	Jamal Principe

Grade 3

12/13-Mar-	-16, Elim. Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	SF	Iluka 1	Andrew Micenko	Stephen Lamb
UN	RM	James	Daniel Gibbons	Fred Davis
PE	WI	Cresswell	Daniel Skinn	Chaapa Pelpola

19/20-Mar-	-16, Semi Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
JO	WI	Iluka 1	Dean Trigg	John Sherry
UN	SF	James Oval	Jamal Principe	Andrew Micenko

26/27-M	ar-16, Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire 3
JO	SF	Fletcher 1	Hennie Botes	Trent Steenholdt	John Sherry

Grade 4

12/13-Mar	-16, Elim. Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
FR	SP	Stevens West	Colin Ogilvie	Jack Paterson
MG	ML	Lilac Hill 1	Stuart Blacker	Marko Sasic
ME	CN	Tompkins 1	Stephen O'Dea	Bruce Banyard

19/20-Mar-16, Semi Final		Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2
FR	CN	Stevens West	Daniel Gibbons	Stephen Lamb
MG	SP	Lilac Hill 1	Daniel Skinn	Chaapa Pelpola

26/27-M	ar-16, Final	Venue	Umpire 1	Umpire 2	Umpire 3
MG	CN	Fletcher 2	John Taylor	Neil Holland	Daniel Skinn





ASSOCIATION RECORDS

Test Match Representatives

McConnell PJ	22
Prue TA	9
Weser DG	3
Evans RJ	3
Townsend NE	1
Mackley AE	1

One Day International Representatives

McConnell PJ	68
Prue TA	39
Evans RJ	17
Emerson RA	10
Weser DG	8
Martell MD	4
Duperouzel G	1

T20 International

Martell MD 2



First Class Representatives

Lock IH	86	Craig AR	21	Rinaldi KR	6
McConnell PJ	82	Brookes JK	20	Bezant CJ	4
Prue TA	75	D'Arcy-Evans EJ	14	Claydon AC	4
Townsend NE	56	Rennie BT	13	Tonkinson ET	4
Mackley AE	51	Robbins JP	12	McClean MG	3
Cooley OTC	49	Woolridge RJ	12	Cook BD	2
Evans RJ	47	Foster AH	10	Wilson P	2
Martell MD	44	Gillott JA	9		
Emerson RA	33	Bibby G	8		
Weser DG	32	Duperouzel G	8		
Carter WI	30	Powell WM	7		
Hawks DL	23	Bennett B	6		

List A Limited Over Matches

McConnell PJ	91	Rinaldi KR	10	Bibby G	2
Prue TA	73	Woolridge RJ	7	Foster AH	1
Martell MD	50	Rennie BT	6	Bezant CJ	1
Lock IH	48	Carter WI	5	Claydon AC	1
Evans RJ	44	Duperouzel G	4	Cook BD	1
Emerson RA	34	Wilson P	4		
Brookes JK	25	Johnstone NR	4		
Weser DG	20	Hawks DL	3		
Craig AR	19	Townsend NE	2		
Bennett B	17	D'Arcv-Evans EJ	2		

List A T20 Matches

Martell MD	53	Brookes JK	6	Wilson P	2
Lock IH	28	Craig AR	5	Bennett B	1



Senior Grade Cricket (Top 100)

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, Colts, One Day League, T20, U18, U18 T20, U17)

	Umpire	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	4 th	Colts	One	T20	U18T	U17	Total
1.	Robbins JP	308	67	49	55	0	0	0	0	0	479
2.	Frame DA	22	247	81	7	68	19	0	0	0	444
3.	Rann TR	237	30	20	8	35	60	47	3	0	440
4.	Blyth JH	235	54	30	59	37	18	0	0	0	433
5.	Watson RFI	0	90	86	203	42	6	1	0	3	431
6.	Polich T	208	79	41	21	19	51	4	1	2	426
7.	Evans RJ	257	22	7	14	5	114	0	0	0	419
8.	Richings AE	91	184	30	21	30	27	0	0	0	383
9.	Powell WM	200	39	36	22	17	68	0	0	0	382
10.	Green CW	65	122	114	78	0	0	0	0	0	379
11.	Tonkinson ET	294	64	5	2	0	0	0	0	0	365
12.	Reynolds WP	169	79	9	15	7	80	0	0	2	361
13.	Weser DG	203	45	7	30	21	55	0	0	0	361
14.	McDonald SJ	260	62	18	5	6	7	0	0	0	358
15.	Hawks DL	156	133	13	17	9	27	0	0	0	355
16.	Prue TA	209	13	11	9	5	100	0	0	0	347
17.	True WA	12	78	108	95	28	7	0	0	4	332
18.	Bibby G	169	29	23	8	19	79	0	0	0	327
19.	Johnstone NR	159	44	18	20	27	26	27	0	0	321
20.	Farrington HW	9	119	101	89	0	0	0	0	0	318
21.	Brown GJ	19	205	45	24	20	1	1	0	0	315
22.	Smith MR	0	20	155	119	18	0	0	0	1	313
23.	Lock IH	183	10	18	12	14	56	17	0	0	310
24.	Johnson RA	175	45	20	27	21	18	0	0	0	306
25.	Jelly GM	8	128	77	77	9	1	0	0	0	300
26.	Bezant CJ	166	42	11	9	7	60	0	0	0	295
27.	Elliot J	62	209	12	10	0	0	0	0	0	293
28.	Roberts E	36	154	64	34	0	0	0	0	0	288
29.	Carter WI	184	28	29	9	16	22	0	0	0	288
30.	Johnston DW	128	33	35	23	25	35	0	0	6	285
31.	Reynolds CA	134	20	26	15	39	42	0	0	0	276
32.	McConnell PJ	139	17	17	26	9	67	0	0	0	275
33.	Brookes JK	168	12	13	9	6	44	22	0	0	274
34.	Trigg DC	138	23	23	6	24	14	40	2	0	270
35.	de Mamiel WF	64	100	26	23	28	28	0	0	1	270
36.	Scott M	54	97	39	36	24	8	6	2	0	266
37.	Belcher R	3	158	51	25	20	0	4	0	0	261
38.	Tibbit A	85	69	27	23	27	19	5	0	5	260
39.	Holland NW	141	22	8	8	36	9	34	1	0	259



	Umpire	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	4 th	Colts	One	T20	U18T	U17	Total
40.	Boyd R	58	73	62	16	29	15	1	0	0	254
41.	Ogilvie C	1	149	65	20	12	2	2	0	0	251
42.	Pudovskis A	0	51	138	47	6	0	1	1	0	244
43.	Townsend NE	184	11	20	15	5	8	0	0	0	243
44.	Rawnsley H	0	5	118	119	0	0	0	0	0	242
45.	Press M	105	46	23	17	12	33	0	0	6	242
46.	Stevens VM	106	48	15	21	13	37	0	0	1	241
47.	Rennie BT	132	25	12	4	10	57	0	0	0	240
48.	Allen CR	85	20	41	29	35	30	0	0	0	240
49.	Foley MF	181	31	14	14	0	0	0	0	0	240
50.	Elstone DK	128	22	21	17	9	43	0	0	0	240
51.	D'Arcy-Evans EJ	152	19	12	9	15	26	0	0	0	233
52.	Dix A	111	34	13	15	27	31	0	0	0	231
53.	Craig AR	130	23	10	3	13	42	10	0	0	231
54.	Foster AH	117	38	21	29	10	10	0	0	0	225
55.	Baldwinson DA	0	4	84	122	3	0	0	0	9	222
56.	Hall MP	105	22	19	9	18	12	33	3	0	221
57.	Gates R	75	59	12	5	33	37	0	0	0	221
58.	Cook BD	136	19	16	11	10	27	0	0	0	219
59.	Emerson RA	143	4	3	4	1	62	0	0	0	217
60.	James CN	96	48	26	5	19	8	10	3	0	215
61.	Mais CJ	55	72	19	16	20	23	0	0	3	208
62.	Mackley AE	185	9	5	8	0	0	0	0	0	207
63.	Ross AIMcI	48	110	24	12	7	4	0	0	0	205
64.	Cooley OTC	178	18	4	2	0	0	0	0	0	202
65.	Quayle BW	27	96	41	36	2	0	0	0	0	202
66.	Basto P	134	57	8	3	0	0	0	0	0	202
67.	Pender JW	87	50	7	9	11	38	0	0	0	202
68.	Rinaldi KR	105	20	15	8	9	41	0	0	2	200
69.	Turner WJ	0	70	56	71	0	1	0	0	0	198
70.	Steenholdt TL	106	24	7	11	20	4	25	1	0	198
71.	Cutmore JL	79	86	28	4	0	0	0	0	0	197
72.	Wylie KR	24	56	42	35	24	8	0	0	6	195
73.	Cahill P	93	18	17	12	37	2	10	2	0	191
74.	Adam A	1	21	48	111	6	0	0	0	2	189
75.	Gartner J	0	0	57	122	6	0	1	0	0	186
76.	Cracknell RFW	10	156	8	11	0	0	0	0	0	185
77.	Lovelock C	85	40	16	2	21	8	13	0	0	185
78.	SINCLAIR	78	42	33	32	0	0	0	0	0	185
79.	Kavanagh JMD	69	40	21	13	22	18	0	0	0	183
80.	ARTHUR	93	26	24	39	0	0	0	0	0	182
81.	Davis FL	60	46	21	5	18	21	10	0	0	181
82.	Bourne GW	114	21	15	21	6	3	0	0	0	180



	Umpire	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	4 th	Colts	One	T20	U18T	U17	Total
83.	Lethbridge RM	162	12	3	1	0	0	0	0	0	178
84.	REEVES PW	43	44	24	21	17	15	0	0	13	177
85.	Langdon HV	105	40	25	7	0	0	0	0	0	177
86.	Rowe J	53	84	27	12	0	0	0	0	0	176
87.	Farrell S	76	34	21	4	21	2	14	4	0	176
88.	Bennett B	109	11	10	3	7	35	0	0	0	175
89.	Pendlebury BA	77	36	15	11	18	18	0	0	0	175
90.	Gillott JA	121	44	7	3	0	0	0	0	0	175
91.	Loader P.	15	110	12	10	26	1	0	0	0	174
92.	Pease RR	88	22	9	11	16	28	0	0	0	174
93.	Leslie GJ	32	78	34	15	11	3	0	0	0	173
94.	Wheatland BR	61	55	13	10	17	17	0	0	0	173
95.	McClean MG	85	31	14	16	13	12	0	0	0	171
96.	Drew JW	67	31	13	59	0	0	0	0	0	170
97.	Barron WT	73	23	17	7	9	9	26	3	0	167
98.	McPharlin K	0	119	24	3	16	0	1	1	0	164
99.	Capper G	52	45	24	3	23	9	7	0	0	163
100.	Williams BJ	0	1	62	100	0	0	0	0	0	163

Junior Grade Cricket (Top 15)

	Umpire	U17	U15	U14	U13	Total
1.	Creasy H	15	71	6	33	125
2.	McArthur C	38	40	19	16	113
3.	Moore R	16	63	10	22	111
4.	Thorpe KL	4	76	5	25	110
5.	Cockman B	40	15	22	10	87
6.	Buscall J	42	23	10	8	83
7.	Mollatt A	44	28	7	4	83
8.	Perkins T	15	18	32	14	79
9.	Harvey M	48	29	1	0	78
10.	Christides G	21	23	13	5	62
11.	Butson J	24	18	7	11	60
12.	Kovalevs MP	14	24	11	11	60
13.	Fowler E	26	7	10	10	53
14.	Krink T	32	18	3	0	53
15.	Ryan B	17	20	6	5	48



Female Grade Cricket (Top 15)

	Umpire	Α	В	AT20	BT20	Total
1.	Pudovskis A	73	21	31	8	133
2.	Wood W	43	12	28	10	93
3.	Brennan M	38	4	23	3	68
4.	Gartner J	15	22	13	16	66
5.	Powell WM	50	1	9	0	60
6.	Meyers A	7	26	4	22	59
7.	Mollatt A	15	4	14	10	43
8.	Cornish V	18	16	7	0	41
9.	O'Leary WR	15	5	9	11	40
10.	Kovalevs AN	22	0	13	0	35
11.	McPharlin K	15	9	4	2	30
12.	Vyse W	17	11	2	0	30
13.	Creasy H	1	20	0	7	28
14.	Walters N	6	8	2	11	27
15.	Belcher R	6	2	6	10	24

First Grade Matches (Top 30)

Robbins JP	308	Carter WI	184	Lethbridge RM	162
Tonkinson ET	294	Townsend NE	184	Johnstone NR	159
McDonald SJ	260	Lock IH	183	Hawks DL	156
Evans RJ	257	Foley MF	181	D'Arcy-Evans EJ	152
Rann TR	237	Cooley OTC	178	Emerson RA	143
Blyth JH	235	Johnson RA	175	Holland NW	141
Prue TA	209	Reynolds WP	169	McConnell PJ	139
Polich T	208	Bibby G	169	Trigg DC	138
Weser DG	203	Brookes JK	168	Cook BD	136
Powell WM	200	Bezant CJ	166	Reynolds CA	134



Second Grade Matches (Top 30)

Frame DA	247	Farrington HW	119	Pady AE	93
Elliot J	209	McPharlin K	119	Milne IL	91
Brown GJ	205	Ross AIMcI	110	Watson RFI	90
Richings AE	184	Loader P.	110	Cutmore JL	86
Belcher R	158	de Mamiel WF	100	Mistillis J	85
Cracknell RFW	156	O'Dea S	98	Rowe J	84
Roberts E	154	Scott M	97	Polich T	79
Ogilvie C	149	Quayle BW	96	Reynolds WP	79
Hawks DL	133	Forsyth D	96	Leslie GJ	78
Jelly GM	128	Banyard LB	96	True WA	78

Third Grade Matches (Top 30)

155	Logan J	67	Gartner J	57
138	White GA	66	Turner WJ	56
118	Ogilvie C	65	Allen WA	53
114	Roberts E	64	Turner AK	53
108	Kumar V	63	Belcher R	51
101	Boyd R	62	Robbins JP	49
86	Williams BJ	62	Lethbridge AF	49
84	Cowan JA	61	Renshaw HL	49
81	Brennan M	60	Adam A	48
77	Alderman LRH	59	Bebbington T	48
	138 118 114 108 101 86 84	138 White GA 118 Ogilvie C 114 Roberts E 108 Kumar V 101 Boyd R 86 Williams BJ 84 Cowan JA 81 Brennan M	138 White GA 66 118 Ogilvie C 65 114 Roberts E 64 108 Kumar V 63 101 Boyd R 62 86 Williams BJ 62 84 Cowan JA 61 81 Brennan M 60	138 White GA 66 Turner WJ 118 Ogilvie C 65 Allen WA 114 Roberts E 64 Turner AK 108 Kumar V 63 Belcher R 101 Boyd R 62 Robbins JP 86 Williams BJ 62 Lethbridge AF 84 Cowan JA 61 Renshaw HL 81 Brennan M 60 Adam A

Fourth Grade Matches (Top 30)

Watson RFI	203	Green CW	78	Renshaw HL	59
Baldwinson DA	122	Jelly GM	77	Blyth JH	59
Gartner J	122	Jacobs WAJ	77	Drew JW	59
Smith MR	119	Ratnayake RCP	75	Robbins JP	55
Rawnsley H	119	Gibson R	73	Pearce JHM	53
Adam A	111	Vakil P	72	Meyers A	52
Williams BJ	100	Turner WJ	71	Loney JS	50
True WA	95	Harley P	69	Lunn P	50
Farrington HW	89	Sanders AF	66	Harden AL	49
Edmonds MJ	80	Bebbington T	63	Alderman LRH	48



Colts Matches (Top 30)

Frame DA	68	Kennedy PD	29	Wylie KR	24
Watson RFI	42	Boyd R	29	Trigg DC	24
Reynolds CA	39	True WA	28	Thomson PJ	24
Blyth JH	37	de Mamiel WF	28	Capper G	23
Cahill P	37	Tibbit A	27	Getty RM	23
Holland NW	36	Johnstone NR	27	Hewitt PA	22
Allen CR	35	Dix A	27	Kavanagh JMD	22
Rann TR	35	Loader P.	26	Buxton MF	22
Gates R	33	Johnston DW	25	Weser DG	21
Richings AE	30	Scott M	24	Johnson RA	21

One Day League Matches (Top 30)

Evans RJ	114	Lock IH	56	Pender JW	38
Prue TA	100	Weser DG	55	Gates R	37
Reynolds WP	80	Polich T	51	Stevens VM	37
Bibby G	79	Brookes JK	44	Johnston DW	35
Powell WM	68	Elstone DK	43	Bennett B	35
McConnell PJ	67	Gannon C	43	Press M	33
Emerson RA	62	Reynolds CA	42	Gunn AC	32
Rann TR	60	Craig AR	42	Dix A	31
Bezant CJ	60	Rinaldi KR	41	Allen CR	30
Rennie BT	57	Zoch RH	38	Pender JW	38

T20 Matches (Top 30)

47	Taylor JW	15	Botes HJS	9
40	Farrell S	14	Garlett R	8
33	Lovelock C	13	Gibbons DW	8
32	McCann CJ	11	Capper G	7
27	Davis FL	10	Bore S	7
26	Boyle SW	10	Evans RW	7
23	Cahill P	10	Power DM	7
17	Lock IH	9	Scott M	6
15	James CN	9	Downing AJ	6
15	Sherry JG	9	Mittal U	6
	40 33 32 27 26 23 17	40 Farrell S 33 Lovelock C 32 McCann CJ 27 Davis FL 26 Boyle SW 23 Cahill P 17 Lock IH 15 James CN	40 Farrell S 14 33 Lovelock C 13 32 McCann CJ 11 27 Davis FL 10 26 Boyle SW 10 23 Cahill P 10 17 Lock IH 9 15 James CN 9	40 Farrell S 14 Garlett R 33 Lovelock C 13 Gibbons DW 32 McCann CJ 11 Capper G 27 Davis FL 10 Bore S 26 Boyle SW 10 Evans RW 23 Cahill P 10 Power DM 17 Lock IH 9 Scott M 15 James CN 9 Downing AJ



2015-2016 SEASON RECORDS

Senior Grade Cricket

Name	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	4 th	Colts	One	T20	Prev	YTD	Total
Allen W	0	4	3	4	0	0	0	14	11	25
Banyard LB	0	14	1	1	2	0	0	133	18	151
Barron WT	14	0	0	1	0	0	6	146	21	167
Batskos NV	0	0	5	3	0	0	0	13	8	21
Belcher R	0	10	1	0	1	0	0	249	12	261
Bell J	0	0	3	8	0	0	0	2	11	13
Blacker S	0	15	0	1	4	0	2	41	22	63
Botes HJS	12	1	1	0	0	0	3	70	17	87
Boyd R	0	1	10	1	0	0	0	242	12	254
Boyle SW	5	5	1	1	1	0	0	126	13	139
Brennan M	0	11	1	1	0	0	0	105	13	118
Brookes JK	15	0	1	0	0	2	4	252	22	274
Campbell D	0	1	13	0	2	0	0	0	16	16
Capper G	7	4	0	0	2	0	3	147	16	163
Cheeseman M	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	21	1	22
Chishtie J	0	0	4	3	0	0	0	13	7	20
Chua EMT	0	0	4	5	0	0	0	28	9	37
Davis FL	0	13	1	0	5	0	2	160	21	181
Dhanaraj N	0	0	0	12	0	0	0	15	12	27
Elwell M	0	5	7	3	3	0	0	0	18	18
Evans RW	4	2	2	0	3	0	2	102	13	115
Fogliani L	0	0	4	5	0	0	0	4	9	13
Garlett R	0	0	5	1	2	0	0	96	8	104
Gartner J	0	0	3	10	0	0	0	173	13	186
Gibbons DW	5	8	1	1	5	0	3	52	23	75
Gilders C	0	0	3	3	0	0	0	12	6	18
Hall MP	13	0	0	2	0	0	5	201	20	221
Hewitt JC	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	35	1	36
Hewitt JH	12	1	0	2	0	0	2	104	17	121
Hicks S	0	0	5	1	1	0	0	19	7	26
Holland NW	14	2	1	1	6	0	5	230	29	259
Hooper M	11	1	0	0	0	0	2	67	14	81
Jacobs G	0	5	3	0	1	0	0	0	9	9
Janiyani M	0	0	2	6	0	0	0	19	8	27
Johnstone NR	16	0	0	0	1	2	5	297	24	321
Kirk D	0	0	2	7	0	0	0	0	9	9
Kovalevs AN	0	6	5	1	3	0	0	7	15	22
Kovalevs MP	0	3	7	2	0	0	0	13	12	25
Krieg D	8	0	0	2	1	0	3	34	14	48
Krink T	0	8	6	1	1	0	0	43	16	59



Name	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	4 th	Colts	One	T20	Prev	YTD	Total
Kumar S	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	8	1	9
Kumar V	0	0	5	2	0	0	0	100	7	107
Lamb S	0	12	1	3	3	0	1	86	20	106
Lindsay L	0	0	4	2	0	0	0	0	6	6
Lock IH	3	0	0	1	0	0	1	305	5	310
Martell MD	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	154	2	156
McCrorie G	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	1
Mearns J	0	0	11	2	0	0	0	14	13	27
Meyers A	0	0	3	4	0	0	0	54	7	61
Micenko AM	15	0	2	0	5	0	2	46	24	70
Mollatt A	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	29	2	31
O'Dea S	0	15	0	1	1	0	0	120	17	137
Ogilvie C	0	15	0	1	2	0	0	233	18	251
Pai P	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	4	4
Paterson J	0	11	1	1	2	0	0	20	15	35
Pelpola C	8	7	1	1	5	0	5	91	27	118
Polich T	0	0	3	3	0	0	0	418	6	424
Press M	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	234	2	236
Principe J	13	1	1	0	0	0	0	87	15	102
Rabbi F	0	0	3	6	0	0	0	0	9	9
Ramadurg S	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	5	5
Ramanathan V	0	0	3	6	0	0	0	0	9	9
Rann TR	16	1	0	0	0	1	5	417	23	440
Rasheed T	0	10	2	0	0	0	0	45	12	57
Ravichandram D	0	0	2	5	0	0	0	0	7	7
Rifki H	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	1
Robin I	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	3	3
Robinson I	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	2	2
Rodgers J	0	0	4	9	0	0	0	41	13	54
Rose S	0	6	7	1	3	0	0	59	17	76
Sasic M	0	15	0	1	3	0	0	42	19	61
Shakeshaft J	0	5	6	2	1	0	0	23	14	37
Shams S	0	0	0	9	0	0	0	0	9	9
Sherry JG	13	2	2	0	0	0	1	85	18	103
Sisti S	0	0	2	7	0	0	0	0	9	9
Skinn C	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	1	2
Skinn D	9	6	1	1	1	0	0	53	18	71
Smart C	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	1
Spina JS	0	5	0	0	1	0	0	69	6	75
Steenholdt TL	14	2	1	0	2	0	5	174	24	198
Stubberfield A	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	1	2	3
Taylor JW	11	2	0	1	2	0	5	69	21	90
Thorpe KL	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	31	2	33



Name	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	4 th	Colts	One	T20	Prev	YTD	Total
Tindall M	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	29	6	35
Trigg DC	15	1	1	0	0	0	2	251	19	270
Vakil P	0	1	8	3	0	0	0	75	12	87
Walters N	0	6	7	1	4	0	0	31	18	49
Whetstone P	0	0	2	1	0	0	0	0	3	3
Wilson A	0	10	0	1	0	0	0	30	11	41
Wright A	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	33	2	35

Junior Grade Cricket

Name	U17	U15	U14	U13	Prev	YTD	Total
Batskos NV	1	1	0	1	42	3	45
Boyd R	0	0	0	1	3	1	4
Buscall J	6	5	0	0	72	11	83
Campbell D	7	1	2	1	0	11	11
Christides G	4	1	0	0	57	5	62
Cockman B	3	2	3	1	157	9	166
Creasy H	1	9	2	6	214	18	232
Davis FL	0	0	2	0	0	2	2
Dhanaraj N	0	0	1	4	4	5	9
Elwell M	4	2	4	2	0	12	12
Evans RW	0	0	0	1	0	1	1
Findlay A	2	2	0	0	21	4	25
Fogliani L	1	4	1	0	38	6	44
Fowler E	3	1	0	0	49	4	53
Gartner J	0	0	0	1	0	1	1
Hall MP	0	1	0	0	6	1	7
Harvey M	4	1	0	0	128	5	133
Hilditch A	0	0	1	2	0	3	3
Hodge J	0	2	1	1	0	4	4
Johnston T	1	5	1	2	0	9	9
Jones A	5	4	2	3	30	14	44
Jones A	1	0	0	0	0	1	1
Kirk D	0	0	1	2	0	3	3
Krink T	2	4	3	0	44	9	53
McArthur C	4	8	3	2	96	17	113
McCrorie G	3	7	0	1	26	11	37
McCulloch B	0	0	2	2	20	4	24
Mearns J	0	0	1	2	0	3	3
Meyers A	0	0	3	2	1	5	6
Mollatt A	2	1	2	1	117	6	123
Moore C	0	1	0	0	1	1	2



Name	U17	U15	U14	U13	Prev	YTD	Total
Moore R	1	8	4	2	138	15	153
Naseer S	0	0	3	2	0	5	5
Ogilvie C	0	0	1	1	29	2	31
Pai P	0	1	0	0	0	1	1
Pelpola C	0	0	1	6	11	7	18
Perkins T	4	5	7	0	94	16	110
Pickering L	0	0	1	2	0	3	3
Power DM	12	0	0	0	17	12	29
Rabbi F	0	1	0	1	0	2	2
Rajanayagam S	6	2	4	3	24	15	39
Ramadurg S	0	1	1	1	0	3	3
Ramanathan V	0	1	0	4	0	5	5
Ravichandram D	1	2	3	3	0	9	9
Rifki H	0	0	1	1	0	2	2
Robin I	0	0	0	1	0	1	1
Rose S	5	0	3	3	14	11	25
Shakeshaft J	0	0	0	1	1	1	2
Shams S	0	3	2	2	0	7	7
Sisti S	0	0	1	2	0	3	3
Thorpe KL	1	6	4	1	174	12	186

Female Grade Cricket

Name	А	В	AT20	BT20	Prev	YTD	Total
Jones A	1	4	0	0	2	5	7
Micenko AM	0	0	0	1	0	1	1
Mollatt A	0	0	3	0	40	3	43
Kovalevs AN	5	0	3	0	27	8	35
Meyers A	0	0	0	1	58	1	59
McCulloch B	0	0	0	1	2	1	3
Wood W	0	0	0	4	89	4	93
Belcher R	2	1	6	4	11	13	24
Banyard LB	1	3	3	0	0	7	7
Pelpola C	1	0	0	0	0	1	1
Ogilvie C	0	2	3	4	14	9	23
Skinn D	0	0	1	0	12	1	13
Campbell D	0	3	0	1	0	4	4
Ravichandram D	0	0	1	0	0	1	1
Davis FL	3	0	0	0	0	3	3
Capper G	0	0	1	0	0	1	1
Rifki H	0	1	0	0	0	1	1
Botes HJS	1	0	0	0	0	1	1
Hewitt JH	1	0	0	0	0	1	1



Name	Α	В	AT20	BT20	Prev	YTD	Total
Hodge J	0	0	0	1	0	1	1
Gartner J	0	3	0	9	54	12	66
Mearns J	0	0	1	0	0	1	1
Sherry JG	0	0	1	0	0	1	1
Taylor JW	1	0	2	0	0	3	3
Shakeshaft J	0	1	0	0	0	1	1
Fogliani L	0	1	0	0	1	1	2
Hooper M	0	0	2	0	2	2	4
Sasic M	0	0	1	0	0	1	1
Elwell M	0	4	0	0	0	4	4
Hall MP	0	0	2	0	1	2	3
Kovalevs MP	0	0	1	0	2	1	3
Johnstone NR	0	0	1	0	5	1	6
Holland NW	0	0	2	0	0	2	2
Dhanaraj N	0	1	1	0	1	2	3
Evans RW	1	0	1	0	1	2	3
Boyd R	2	1	5	2	12	10	22
Sisti S	0	1	0	0	0	1	1
Rose S	0	1	0	2	8	3	11
Lamb S	1	0	1	0	1	2	3
Blacker S	1	0	1	1	0	3	3
Rann TR	0	0	1	0	1	1	2
Steenholdt TL	1	0	1	0	0	2	2
Krink T	2	3	0	3	1	8	9



2015-2016 UMPIRE MILESTONES

Senior Grade Cricket

300 GRADE GAMES lan Lock

Nathan Johnstone

250 GRADE GAMES Jeff Brookes

Bob Belcher Roy Boyd Neil Holland Colin Ogilvie

200 GRADE GAMES Matthew Hall

150 GRADE GAMES Graham Capper

Wayne Barron Mick Martell

100 GRADE GAMES Chaapa Pelpola

John Sherry Jamal Principe Stephen Lamb Rueben Garlett

50 GRADE GAMES Thaiyar Rasheed

James Rodgers Andrew Micenko Trevor Krink Stuart Blacker Marko Sasic

150 FIRST GRADE GAMES Nathan Johnstone

100 FIRST GRADE GAMES Matthew Hall

Trent Steenholdt

50 FIRST GRADE GAMES Graham Capper

50 SECOND GRADE GAMES Chaapa Pelpola

50 FOURTH GRADE GAMES Aubrey Meyers



Junior Grade Cricket

100 JUNIOR GAMES Colin McArthur

50 JUNIOR GAMES Trevor Krink

2015-2016 UMPIRE DEBUT'S

Senior Grade Cricket

Shamin Shams David Campbell Vaithianathan Ramanathan Samuel Sisti Matthew Elwell Deepak Ravichandram Gareth Jacobs Hashim Rifki Clint Smart David Kirk Iftekhar Robin Peter Whetstone Luke Lindsay Ian Robinson Prashant Pai Garth McCrorie Forhad Rabbi Shrikant Ramadurg

Junior Grade Cricket

John Gartner David Kirk David Campbell Rex Evans Vaithianathan Ramanathan **Shamin Shams** Fred Davis Matthew Elwell Samuel Sisti Marko Sasic Deepak Ravichandram Shrikant Ramadurg John Mearns Jarrad Hodge Thomas Johnston Alan Jones Forhad Rabbi Hashim Rifki Prashant Pai Andrew Hilditch Linda Pickering Iftekhar Robin Syed Naseer

Female Grade Cricket

John Sherry Fred Davis David Campbell Chaapa Pelpola John Taylor Matthew Elwell James Hewitt Graham Capper Deepak Ravichandram Bruce Banyard Andrew Micenko Jarrad Hodge Neil Holland Stuart Blacker Samuel Sisti Trent Steenholdt Marko Sasic Hashim Rifki Hennie Botes Justin Shakeshaft Fred Davis

John Mearns



2015-2016 UMPIRE MEDAL'S

PETER McCONNELL MEDAL Hennie Botes

FIRST GRADE UMPIRE Todd Rann

SECOND GRADE UMPIRE Daniel Gibbons

THIRD GRADE UMPIRE Nick Walters

FOURTH GRADE UMPIRE James Bell

FEMALE GRADE CRICKET Ashlee Kovalevs

OLLY COOLEY MEDAL NIGHT



Midland-Guildford batsman Stewart Walters and Rockingham-Mandurah allrounder Brendon Diamanti were crowned joint winners of the 2015-16 Olly Cooley Medal.

Swans captain Walters and ex-New Zealand international Diamanti are the first joint winners in five years, when David Bandy and Matt Johnston shared the award.

For Walters, it is his second Olly Cooley medal, having won the award in the 2006-07 season, while Diamanti becomes the second Mariner to win the gong in the past four seasons, after Craig Simmons in 2012-13.

The pair polled 15 votes, finishing ahead of Fremantle's English recruit Thomas Abell and Melville fast bowler Mark Turner on 14 votes. Winners from the other grades were:

4th Grade - ALLAN MACKLEY MEDAL

Greg Ottiaviano (MG), Tom Smith (ME), and

Josh Cameron (WA)

3rd Grade - ALBERT RICHINGS MEDAL Tony Coulson (RM)

2nd Grade – JP ROBBINS MEDAL Jed Standring (JO), Sam Birchall (SP)



FINANCIAL REPORT

Statement of Financial Position (31st May 2016)

	Note	2016	2015
ACCUMULATED FUNDS			
Balance Brought Forward		17080	15561
Excess of Income over Expenditure for year		-554	1519
		16,526	17,080
Represented by			
CURRENT ASSETS			
Cash at bank	1	3394	4484
Term Deposit	1	13028	12621
Sundry Debtors	1	155	
		16,577	17,105
Less CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Sundry Creditors		0	0
Prepayment - Advance Subscription		50	25
		50	25
		16,527	17,080



Itemised Profit and Loss Statement

	Note	2016	2015
INCOME			
Interest received		406	387
Grand Final Breakfast	2	165	
Sponsored Equipment Sales		78	1125
Subscriptions		3200	2940
K.Read Function	6	264	125
Life Members Breakfast	7	105	125
Raffles		544	508
Sundry Receipts			70
Olly Cooley Night	4	750	650
		5,512	5,930
Less EXPENDITURE			
Membership - Perth Tattersall		450	300
Life Members Breakfast	7	566	480
Supper Expenses		334	283
Postage			55
Refreshments		607	290
Olly Cooley Night	5	1200	825
WACA Barbecue	3	1315	1484
K.Read Function	6	600	250
Grand Final Breakfast	2	623	
Sundry Expenses	4	221	94
Subscription Rebate		150	350
		6,066	4,411
EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURE		(554)	1,519



Notes

			Note	2016	2015
Note 1					
Cheque Acco	ount C'wth Bank		247		
Cheque Acco	ount Bank of Queensland		3147	3394	5627
Term Deposi	t Bank of Quuensland			13028	10234
Sundry Debte	ors- Unpaid Cooley Tickets	5		155	
Nata 2 Crar	nd Final Breakfast	Function Cost		623	
Note 2 Gran	iu riiidi breakiast			165	
		Receipts		105	
Note 3 WA	.CA Barbecue	Cost		1315	1484
NOTE 5 WA	CA Daibecue	Cost		1313	1404
Note 4 Sur	ndry Expenses	Domain Fee		84	54
	.) [Life Member Badge		137	
		Raffle Prize			40
Note 5 Olly	/ Cooley Function	Cost		1200	825
		Umpires			-550
		Donation			-100
Note 6 K.	Read Function	Cost		500	250
		Receipts		264	125
Note 7 Life	Members Breakfast	Cost		566	480
		Receipts		105	125



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to acknowledge John Sherry, Bill Reynolds and Bob Watson for his help in preparing this report.

All records and statistics printed are accurate to the best of our knowledge.

Cricket Australia, CricInfo, National Champs and the WACA were also sourced in preparation of this report.

Photography from Carmen Sherry, Daniel Gibbons, the WACA and Gary Richards (Wanneroo District Cricket Club) were also used.

COPYRIGHT © 2016

Western Australian Cricket Umpires' Association